
* Adjournment *
Next Meeting: May 3, 2022 at 4:30 pm

In order to ensure a quorum, please contact Austin Winters at 250-475-5494 ext. 3508 or 
Austin.winters@saanich.ca if you are unable to attend. 

AGENDA 
ENVIRONMENT & NATURAL AREAS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Held electronically via Microsoft Teams 
Wednesday April 20, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic and to ensure social distancing, this meeting is 
closed to the public and can be viewed/heard via MS Teams. Please note that MS 
Teams callers are identified by their phone number which can be viewed on screen by 
all attendees at the meeting.  

*** Territorial Acknowledgement & Inclusivity Statement *** 

1. ADOPTION OF MINUTES (attachment)

• March 16, 2022

2. CHAIR’S REMARKS

3. WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLANNING TOD CREEK (attachments)

• Ian Douglas Bruce, Executive Coordinator, Peninsula Streams 
Society

4. CLIMATE ACTION REPORT CARD FOR 2021
• Rebecca Newlove, Manager of Sustainability

• Follow the link below for access to the 2021 Climate Report Card:

• 2021 Climate Report Card

5. BIODIVERSITY IN OUR PARKS (attachment)
• Brian Wilkes

6. NATURESCAPE PRESENTATION FOLLOW UP (attachment)
• Carolyn Richman, Environmental Education Officer



Updated version:  February 2021 

Traditional Territorial Acknowledgement 

It is appropriate that we begin by acknowledging that the District of Saanich lies within 

the territories of the lək̓ʷəŋən (lay-kwung-gen) peoples represented by the Songhees 

and Esquimalt Nations and the W̱SÁNEĆ (weh-saanich) peoples represented by the 

Tsartlip (Sart-Lip), Pauquachin (Paw-Qua-Chin), Tsawout (Say-Out), Tseycum (Sigh-

Come) and Malahat (Mal-a-hat) Nations. 

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Statement 

We are committed to celebrating the rich diversity of people in our community. We are 

guided by the principle that embracing diversity enriches the lives of all people. We all 

share the responsibility for creating an equitable and inclusive community and for 

addressing discrimination in all forms. 



MINUTES 
ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL AREAS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Held electronically via MS Teams 
March 16, 2022 at 6:02 pm 

 
Present: Councillor Karen Harper (Chair), Braedan Drouillard, Kaden Calleberg (Youth 

Member), Kurban Ali Keshvani, Jennifer Grant, Sarah Anderson, Spencer Gillis (Youth 
Member). 

 
Staff:    Eva Riccius, Senior Manager Parks; Harley Machielse, Director of Engineering; Stacy 

McGhee, Program Manager of Strategic Facilities Planning; Adriane Pollard, Manager 
of Environmental Services; and Austin Winters, Committee Clerk. 

 

Regrets: Ryan Senechal 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

MOVED by K. Ali Keshvani and Seconded by S. Anderson “That the Minutes of the 
Environment and Natural Areas Advisory Committee meeting held January 19, 2022 
be adopted as circulated.” 

                       CARRIED 
 

CHAIR’S REMARKS 
 

The following was noted during the Chair’s remarks: 
 

 Council has decided to engage in further consultation with respect to the Cadboro Bay 
Local Area Plan on the issue of greater density in the Cadboro Bay Village specifically. 

 At the April 20th ENAC meeting, a member of the Resilient Saanich Technical Committee 
has been invited to do a presentation for the Committee on biodiversity in Saanich parks. 

 There is going to be a special ENAC meeting on May 3rd at 4:30 p.m. to deal with the 
ENAC award nominees. 

 

BOWKER CREEK DAYLIGHTING FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

The Manager of Environmental Services delivered a presentation on the Bowker Creek 
Daylighting Feasibility Study. The following was noted: 

 

 In September 2020, this daylighting feasibility study was first brought to ENAC. 

 At that meeting the Committee recommended that Council adopt the Bowker Creek 
Daylighting Feasibility Study. 

 The Study has not been brought to Council yet for their consideration due to the scope 
of the Study expanding. 

 Much of Bowker Creek is underground with only 2.5km of the 8km above ground. 

 The Bowker Creek Initiative is a partnership between the Capital Region District, UVic, 
the community associations in the watershed and the three municipalities the Creek runs 
through. 

 The Initiative was established in 2004 and the three municipalities fund the Bowker 
Creek Coordinator position which is housed in the CRD. 



Environment and Natural Areas Advisory Committee – Minutes  March 16, 2022 

2 

 The Plan that was made was a Watershed Management Plan in 2003 which established
the four goals and objectives.

 Much of the Plan had to do with water quantity and the state of the riparian areas.

 There was an Implementation Plan established in 2005 which laid out which individuals
will complete specific roles.

 In 2007, there was a Master Drainage Study to address goal 2 of the Plan which is to
manage flows effectively.

 In 2011, the Bowker Creek Blueprint was created and it established an action plan of
what should be done and where it should be done.

 The 2020 Feasibility Study lays out how everything from the previously established plans
and studies will be completed.

 The 2020 Study goes into so much detail that the Bowker Creek Blueprint is now out of
date due to the newly obtained information.

 The areas of Bowker Creek that have had the least and most amount of progress have
also been identified within the Feasibility Study.

 The Bowker Creek Blueprint 10 Year Achievement Report has also been recently
created to outline what has been accomplished since the initial implementation of the
Blueprint.

 There is also an updated Terms of Reference for the Bowker Creek Initiative which
includes a new quarterly meeting schedule, new media guidelines and new membership
opportunities.

The following was noted during discussion with committee members and staff: 

 There was questioning over what amount of Bowker Creek should be day lighted.

 Staff clarified that the daylighting feasibility study outlines the various areas that could be
day lighted and it does give more information about how achievable the implementation
of more daylighting in various areas throughout Bowker Creek is.

 An inquiry was made over whether there would be criteria outlining what constitutes
more probable areas for daylighting.

 Staff clarified that once the Blueprint is updated, priorities will then be established for
daylighting.

 An inquiry was made over the potential to obtain funding from the federal government to
complete some of these daylighting projects throughout Bowker Creek.

 Staff noted that while federal grant funding is desirable it has not been investigated at
this stage of the project.

 There will a public engagement process with respect to updating the Blueprint which in
turn will help establish priorities.

 The Bowker Creek Blueprint has a 100 year timeline and 10 years have already passed.

MOVED by S. Anderson and Seconded by K. Ali Keshvani “That the Environment 
and Natural Areas Advisory Committee recommend that Council endorse Planning, 
Engineering, and Parks staff resources be allocated to partnering on the updating 
of the Bowker Creek Blueprint and that allocation of $15,000 for cost sharing of 
consulting services be forwarded to the one time resource request process during 
2022 budget deliberations.” 

 CARRIED 



Environment and Natural Areas Advisory Committee – Minutes  March 16, 2022 

3 

SAANICH OPERATIONS CENTRE REDEVELOPMENT 

The Director of Engineering and the Program Manager for Strategic Facilities Planning delivered 
a presentation on the proposed Saanich Operations Centre redevelopment. The following was 
noted: 

 Over 300 staff work from the current Saanich Operation Centre.

 Most of the buildings within the current site date back to the 1950’s and late 1970’s.

 The site organization will be greatly improved through planning that addresses vehicle
circulation, storage, and work locations.

 Most staff work areas are at their end of life and substandard which limit growth.

 The current buildings contain a concerning number of issues including:

o Not complying with life safety requirements of the Building Code;
o Large unsprinklered wooden buildings;
o Structures that cannot withstand an earthquake of even modest magnitude;
o Facility inaccessibility for disabled staff or guests; and
o A vermin outbreak.

 Delivery of services must meet minimum levels and delivered sustainably long into the
future.

 The District has committed to significant environmental targets which include a focus on
the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and a target to reach net-zero.

 The work place design objectives would incorporate Building Code and Work Safe BC
guidelines and practices.

 The site context includes neighbourhoods; residential centers; immediate adjacencies to
the Quadra and McKenzie corridors; and a proximity to the Lochside Trail.

 Given the number of fleet vehicles frequenting the site the current layout poses
numerous traffic and circulation issues.

 Multi storey buildings must be considered for operations and parking due to the site
constraints.

 The planning process has identified that accommodating additional uses on the site is
possible.

 The estimated project budget range would be between $183 million to $212 million and
this estimate class could have a plus or minus 20% variance.

 The projects current implementation schedule would see tendering in the second quarter
of 2026, thus the budget number includes price escalation to that time.

 The estimated cost includes constructions costs, site development, consultant fees,
associated development costs, and contingency.

 The numbers do not include potential revenues generated from the proposed site.

 Should the business case be approved further detailed planning is needed to refine the
design.

 Within the next two years the project objective is to determine the project budget to
much greater certainty through a Class B estimate.

 Through increased certainty in the budget, the District will then go through several
months of educating the public in order to have an alternative approval process
completed.

 That public process will be seeking permission for the District to borrow money to fund
the realization of this project.

 This project represents a shared opportunity that builds operational resiliency and seeks
to maintain and secure Saanich residents’ high quality of life.



 
 
 
Environment and Natural Areas Advisory Committee – Minutes                                March 16, 2022 

4  

The following was noted during discussion with committee members: 
 

 There was questioning over how the changes would be implemented without impacting 
those working at the site currently. 

 Staff clarified that the site is large enough to support a phasing strategy with respect to 
staff on the site during construction. 

 An inquiry was made over whether there has been any discussion over the appropriate 
recycling or disposal of the buildings when they are being demolished or deconstructed. 

 A minimum of LEED gold is being set as the standard design target. 

 LEED is a credit-based system that gives points based on a building's level of 
compliance with various aspects of sustainability with Gold being the second highest 
certification level. 

 An inquiry was made as to whether the parking requirements would be adjusted for this 
project. 

 A majority of the parking demands for this site are fleet related, but with regards to the 
staff parking the parking requirements may be adjusted as it is unrealistic to have a 1:1 
parking ratio within the site. 

 There was questioning into the ability of staff to work from home until the conditions 
improve at the current site. 

 The site is very operationally based, thus requiring the staff to come in person to 
complete their work. 

 

ENAC AWARDS UPDATE 
 

The Manager of Environmental Services delivered an update on the Saanich Environmental 
Awards process. The following was noted: 

 

 The nomination period for the ENAC awards is officially open. 

 Committee members and the public are able to submit nominations online through this 
link: 

o https://www.saanich.ca/EN/main/community/natural-environment/saanich- 
environmental-awards/nominate-someone-for-an-environmental-award.html 

 Those not eligible for the Awards include the current mayor & Council; Saanich staff, and 
ENAC members. 

 Nominees do not have to be a Saanich resident to win an award, but the impacts the 
nominee have undertaken have to be felt in Saanich. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 

Next meeting is Wednesday April 20, 2022. 



 
 
 
Environment and Natural Areas Advisory Committee – Minutes                                March 16, 2022 

5  

 
 

Councillor Karen Harper, Chair 

I hereby certify these Minutes are accurate. 

 

Austin Winters, Committee Secretary 



DRAFT

Tod Creek Integrated Watershed Management Steering Committee
TERMS OF REFERENCE

Submitted Nov. 23, 2021

1.0 Purpose

The purpose of the Tod Creek Integrated Watershed Management Steering Committee is to coordinate the
efforts and interests of the primary landowners and land managers within this watershed: WSANEC Nations,
District of Saanich, District of Central Saanich, Butchart Gardens, Capital Regional District Parks, BC Parks and
FLNROD, as well as stewardship groups and individuals in developing and implementing a Tod Creek
Watershed Management Plan. The working group will assist in public consultation, developing goals and
objectives, prioritizing actions, applying for grants, reviewing technical documents, increasing public awareness,
promoting partnerships, and monitoring environmental indicators and project progress.

2.0 Membership

The steering committee may consist of between eight and 12 primary members, ideally comprised of:

● First Nations representatives appointed by WSANEC Leadership Council;
● minimum one municipal representative, ensuring that engineering, planning, parks and

environmental disciplines are represented from Saanich and Central Saanich
● minimum one provincial representative, ensuring that engineering, planning, parks and  environmental
disciplines are represented from Saanich and Central Saanich
● minimum one member from Butchart Gardens;
● representatives (one primary and one alternate) from stewardship groups active in the area (e.g.,

Friends of Tod Creek Watershed, Peninsula Streams Society)
● up to three seats will be provided for members of the public, potentially including but not limited to
community associations, business leaders, schools, and watershed residents (including youth).

The steering committee will endorse all proposed steering committee members prior to appointment.
Selection criteria for the members of the steering committee will include:

● willingness and ability to commit to the necessary time to support the committee, over a minimum  term
of two years;

● interest and knowledge of the Tod Creek Watershed;
● ability to work toward consensus with people who hold different interests and opinions about the  future

of Tod Creek Watershed;
● skills and experience related to watershed topics are helpful, but not required;
● skills and experience related to the roles and responsibilities associated with a steering
committee are helpful, but not required; and
● members will identify alternates to attend meetings in their absence whenever possible.

Every effort will be made to create an appropriate balance of members, including a mix of people who
represent the diverse backgrounds, experiences, perspectives, and neighbourhoods in the watershed.

3.0 Responsibilities



DRAFT

The responsibilities of the steering committee should include, but are not limited to, the following:
● consulting with the public for the development of a Tod Creek Integrated Watershed Management
Plan;
● develop SMART goals and objectives for the Tod Creek Integrated Watershed Management Plan; ●
identify opportunities and facilitate the development of partnerships between government and
stewardship groups;
● advance First Nations input and collaboration wherever possible;
● promote coordination, clarify priorities, and help set implementation timelines using an adaptive

approach to achieving the goals of the Integrated Watershed Management Plan;
● identify funding sources and participate in the preparation of grant applications;
● review engineering, planning, and consulting documents as appropriate;
● participate in the creation of public outreach events and public consultation;
● monitor and evaluate conditions and trends overtime to ensure the goals and objectives are being
met.

Appointment to the steering committee includes a commitment to developing the Tod Creek Integrated
Watershed Management Plan and advancing the implementation of this plan, including to:

● help foster plan realization through the local governments, landowners/managers and other
stakeholders who may be involved;

● attend committee meetings;
● attend public information/community events and public consultation;
● remain informed and inform others;
● share resources, creativity, experience, and expertise;
● work toward mutually acceptable recommendations; and
● build trust among participants through open, respectful, and productive communication.

4.0 Decision-Making

Tod Creek Integrated Watershed Management Steering Committee members will jointly seek
outcomes that accommodate the interests and values of all members and their constituents, if
possible, and will make decisions by consensus.

Consensus means an agreement that all participants can live with. The participants may not agree with
every aspect but taken as a whole, a decision based on consensus reflects common major interests and
satisfies individual concerns of participants to the extent that they can support it.

If participants reach a consensus on a set of recommendations that resolves most, but not all of the issues
that are being addressed, they will seek to document areas of disagreement. The reasons for disagreement
and opportunities to resolve a disagreement will be included in the steering committee meeting records with
the agreed-upon recommendation or action.

A quorum will consist of not less than four people of which two must be government representatives and two
must be community representatives.

5.0 Meeting Procedures

The Tod Creek Integrated Management  Steering Committee will meet a minimum of four times per year.
Additional meetings may be held as needed to meet timelines or achieve project milestones. Participants will
make every effort to attend working group meetings.
The Steering Committee may nominate a Chair as needed for 1-year renewable terms. The responsibility for
organizing the meetings and taking meeting minutes may fall to all the members of the working group on a
rotating basis.



DRAFT

Meeting agendas, minutes, working files will be stored in a Dropbox or Google folder that all members of the
working group will have access to. Some draft documents may be confidential and should not be shared
widely unless approved for sharing by the working group.

6.0 Public Relations

Persons who are not working group members may attend working group meetings to provide specialized
information/expertise or support (e.g., taking meeting notes). Persons attending a meeting will be asked to
respect the process guidelines. Presentations by the public may be accepted at the discretion of the working
group.

Working group members should work collectively on external messaging and should keep all members
informed of any media interactions.

7.0 Resources

The stewardship and facilitation of future funding will be decided by the working group and may likely be
dependent on the source of the funding.

8.0 Development of Watershed Plan

One of the key outcomes of the working group is the development and implementation of a Tod Creek
Integrated Watershed Management Plan. The working group will work cooperatively with partners in the
development of the plan with the guidance of public participation for the initial concepts and framework as well
as public review and comment on the final draft plan. Public information will also be provided throughout the
process via website and email updates. The process for the final watershed management plan includes
consideration by the District of Saanich and WSANEC Leadership for endorsement.

9.0 References

Bioregional Framework for the Saanich Peninsula [by the Saanich Peninsula Environmental Coalition]

Bowker Creek Watershed Management Plan Terms of Reference

Integrated Watershed Management Approaches Across Canada [by the Canadian Council of Ministers of the
Environment]

Tod Creek Flats Integrated Management Plan [by The Friends of Tod Creek Watershed and Peninsula Streams
Society in collaboration with the District of Saanich]



DRAFT







DRAFT
Tod Creek Integrated Watershed Management

Background
Over the last century, the Tod Creek watershed has undergone significant impacts and
modifications that have greatly reduced and continue to limit its health. Historic and present-day
land-use changes including agriculture, industry, and housing developments, and associated
activities have greatly altered drainage and flow patterns and impaired fundamental functions of
the watershed. They have also greatly undermined the system's natural resiliency against the
current and predicted effects of climate change. The increasing frequency and severity of
seasonal flooding and droughts are further exasperated by growing demands on natural flood
infrastructure and local water supplies. These factors introduce new challenges and risk to local
people and nature, including industry, residents, and vulnerable plant and wildlife populations.
With water scarcity and conflicts between user groups (both human and non-human) imminent,
there is a strong need for comprehensive and holistic management of the watershed and its
resources. A formal system of stewardship, conservation, and fair allocation of resources, that
includes, respects, and provides benefits to a broad range of interest groups and values, must
be developed. With continued watershed development and a large restructuring of provincial
water policy and licensing, now is the time to instill appropriate systems and structures for
effective watershed-level management.

Scope
The area included would be the entirety of Tod Creek Watershed from its headwaters of
Prospect Lake and associated tributaries to its outflow including the marine coastal areas of Tod
Inlet (SNIDCEL). These lands and waters are the traditional territories of WSANEC People
including the Tsartlip Nation, Tseycum Nation, and Tsawout Nation, and within the municipalities
of Saanich and Central Saanich.

Approach
Tod Creek Integrated Watershed Management (IWM) will follow the framework structure and
principles used successfully by other coastal communities analogous in size and scope such as
the Bowker Creek Watershed Management Plan and outlined in REgional and Nationa .
Representatives of First Nations, local governments, senior governments, and various
agricultural, business, environmental, and residential sectors, will meet to develop a common
vision and set of management goals within this IWM framework. Within the framework,
management objectives and strategies to allocate scarce resources to identified needs will be
documented within an Integrated Watershed Management Plan (IWMP) that lays out actions,
responsibilities and desired outcomes. The IWMP and process will be guided and reviewed by a
diverse and dedicated Steering Committee established through the IWM framework process to



DRAFT

ensure targets, commitments, and timelines are being met and that public and private
stakeholder engagement is effective.

Partnerships
Leadership in this initiative will be undertaken by First Nations, local community stewardship
groups such as the Friends of Tod Creek Watershed and Peninsula Streams Society, and
supported by different levels of government and policy groups including the District of Saanich
Engineering, Saanich’s Natural Areas Committee, resilient Saanich and others such as
FLNROD, DFO, CRD, MoE, BC Parks and FLNROD, and POLIS. Partners organizations would
also include local businesses and industries such as Butchart Gardens, UVic,  Camosun, Royal
Roads University, and others. IWM needs to be initiated immediately to guarantee access to
funding for the planning and implementation phases.

Public Engagement and Plan Development
See Terms of Reference

Vision - Goals, Objectives and Outcomes
[Pending establishment of Steering committee and the input from partner and public
engagement]
To ensure water quality and quantity in the Tod Creek Watershed is managed in a manner that
ensures fair allocation to its users and inhabitants both human and non-human and its
scoial-ecological systems are resilient to the changes and challenges the future may bring.



DRAFT

Table of Contents

Summary
Acknowledgements

1. INTRODUCTION
a. Background – Need and Purpose
b. Scope
c. Approach/Strategy
d. Partnerships
e. Public Engagement and Plan Development
f. Vision - Goals, Objectives and Outcomes
g. Jurisdiction
h. Policies and Regulations

2. Tod Creek and Watershed
a. Land Use
b. Values –Social, Cultural, Environmental, Economic
c. Ecology – Habitats, Species, Biodiversity
d. Features of Interest

3. Watershed Issues
a. Stream - water quality, stream degradation, bank erosion/stability,

culverting
b. Watershed Structure and Function – Wetland function, invasive species,

habitat connectivity
c. Recreational, Educational, Natural/Green Spaces
d. Government Coordination and Planning
e. Other

4. Integrated Watershed Management
a. Planning Process - Strategies and Requirements
b. Prioritization – Actions and Critical Areas
c. Recommended Actions – Restoration, Wetland enhancement
d. Plan Implementation – Guidelines, Principles, Actions associated with each

objective
e. Performance Indicators-Goals, Objectives, Recommended Actions, Outcomes
f. Monitoring and Evaluation

5. Management Considerations
a. Approach – Adaptive Management
b. Species at risk and critical habitat
c. Challenges

6. Public Outreach – Activities for each component of the Plan
a. Engagement and Stewardship
b. Education
c. Volunteer programs
d. Awareness campaigns

References
Appendices
List of Tables
List of Figures



Friends of Tod Creek Watershed April 8/ 2022

For Peninsula Streams power point presentation outlining the past works of  Friends of 

Tod Creek Watershed, including the work done cooperatively with  Saanich on the Tod 

Creek Management Plan.

The watershed is located in the north west portion of the district of Saanich  within the Rural 

Saanich Local Area. While it is situated primarily in Saanich, its  boundaries include portions of 

the Districts of Highlands and Central

Saanich. The watershed in Saanich covers an area of 23 km and drains into the  Saanich Inlet 

via its main outflow, Tod Creek. There are approximately 21 km of  watercourses, 29 known 

wetlands, numerous ponds and five lakes. Parts of  Gowlland Tod Provincial Park and Mt. 

Work Regional Park fall within the  watershed.















Environmental Education and Training

• Events:

• Rivers Day Community Celebration

• Stream Keepers Course

• Lake Keepers Course

• Watershed Bus Tours: Adults; School Children [*following pages]

• Turtle ID Paddle

• Salmon fry release, in partnership with local schools Tree Appreciation  Day

• Printed Materials:

• Returning The Loon To Prospect Lake

• Watershed Connections

• Tod Flats Interpretive Signs [**following pages]

• CLEAN, DRAIN, DRY

signs in partnership with Invasive Species Council of BC

• PROSPECT LAKE: Reflections

book in partnership with Prospect Lake Heritage Society

• Prospect Lake Heritage Walking Tour Brochure

in partnership with Prospect Lake Heritage Society

• PROSPECT LAKE: Connections

book, providing background material for this presentation

• Online Presence:

• Friends of Tod Creek Watershed website

 















Restoration Projects

•Trails and Lake Access

•Prospect Lake Elementary School Rain Garden

•Whitehead Park

•Lohr Road

•Killarney Creek Fan

•South Prospect Lake Park

•Tod Creek Flats













Protection Initiatives

• Tod Creek Fishladder to Fishway

• Water Quality Testing

• Aquatic Plant Survey

• Secci Disc Monitoring

• Maltby Lake



Partnerships

Non-governmental Organizations:

• Habitat Acquisition Trust

• Friends of Malty Lake Watershed

• Green Teams of Canada

• Peninsula Streams Society

• SeaChange Marine Conservation Society

• Swan Lake Nature Sanctuary

• Saanich Pulling Together Volunteer Program

• Invasive Species Council of BC

• BC Lake Stewardship Society

Government:

• Capital Regional District

Water Quality and Watershed Management Divisions

• Department of Fisheries, Government of Canada

• District of Saanich, Environment, Parks, Planning and Storm and  

Wastewater Management Departments

• Saanich South, Government of Canada

Submitted by Lori James Derry and Winona Pugh











Saanich Parks Ecological Condition Assessment

Brian Wilkes

• 18 parks visited over the spring/summer/fall of 2021

• Preliminary assessment only – needs follow-up

• Ecological condition assessment followed provincial standard:*

• Excellent: no invasives

• Good: up to 5% invasives

• Fair: 5% to 20% invasives

• Poor: over 20% invasives 

*https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/environment/plants-animals-and-ecosystems/conservation-data-centre/standard for mapping ecosystems at risk.pdf



Mt Tolmie, 2016



Mt Tolmie 2021



Playfair Pk 2019



Playfair Pk 2021



Suppress grass in the early
spring, Camas and other
native plants have a chance
to grow



Knockan Hill Apr 17, 2016



Knockan Hill Apr 30 
2020



Still some areas with Camas and other typical spring flowers but are gradually declining



Camas lilies are gradually disappearing under Garry oaks due to vigourous growth of invasive grasses  



Small areas of moist slopes retain native vegetation, such as licorice fern and native mosses



Foot traffic on moss-covered bedrock outcrops cause long-term damage



Rock outcrops without heavy foot traffic maintain moss populations 





Wildflowers on Panama Flats Park trails are mostly invasive Queen Anne’s lace, thistle, sheep sorrel, alsike clover 



Extremely good job of ridding lower Mt Douglas Park of invasives along Glendenning Trail by Pulling Together



South facing slopes on Mt Doug park with lots of broom and invasive grasses



Trails on Mt Doug Park through invasive grasses that surround the Garry oaks



A few plants of red-listed purple sanicle grow along one of the trails in the Garry oak meadow, Mt. Doug 



Much of the broom on this slope in Mt. Doug Park was removed years ago, but is creeping back in



Glencoe Cove park is small but quite important for biodiversity 



Three scarce and red listed 
plants grow at Glencoe:

Purple sanicle

Macoun’s meadowfoam

Bearded owl-clover



No fencing or other signage, so the rare plants just get walked on by people and dogs



Typical scene in forested areas in Saanich Parks. 



Along the Colquitz near Copley Park. Only 20% cover by invasives puts this in Poor condition



Typical scene in parks with tree canopy and ground shade. Ivy and Daphne predominate  



Sensitive Ecosystem
Type

Condition Rank

Excellent Good Fair Poor

Garry oak woodland 0 <5% <5% >95%

Terr-Herbaceous 0 <5% <5% >95%

Coastal Bluff 0 <5% <5% >95%

Wetlands 0 <5% <5% >95%

Riparian 0 <5% <5% >95%

Douglas-fir forest OF-
SG

0 Approx. 50% Approx. 5% Approx. 45%

Sparsely vegetated 0 10% 25% 65%

Summary of Preliminary Assessment of Ecological Condition by Sensitive Ecosystem*

*Based on parts of each park that was observed



Key Points to Consider

• Parks are changing rapidly

• Protected from development, but not from ecosystem condition 
decline or trampling

• Parks should be reservoirs of native biodiversity

• A “hubs and corridors” approach may be taken for biodiversity 
strategy

• Parks in poor ecological condition cannot effectively serve as hubs



Key Points to Consider

• The challenge is much bigger than more volunteers pulling weeds

• Parks Dept. now does a remarkable job with a limited budget

• Saanich Council committed to the decade of ecosystem restoration*

• There needs to be a plan to get there. Where is the plan?

*See February 3, 2021 press release from Saanich, https://www.saanich.ca/EN/main/news-events/news-archives/2021/saanich-supports-un-s-decade-on-ecosystem-
restoration.html




